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The Virginia Turnpike
In 1853 the State authorized Counties to license toll turnpikes. David Wood and others filed
their intention to organize the Virginia Turnpike Company in November 1855. The final organi-
zation, by-laws and certificate were filed January 25, 1856. The objective was to serve miners
traveling up country from San Francisco and the central valley to California gold mines and to
Nevada silver mines following discovery of the Comstock Lode in 1859. The Turnpike owners
contracted with Jay Johnson to survey the proposed route between Anthony House and
Bridgeport. He issued his map January 7, 1856, and John Day, County Surveyor, copied the
map July 8, 1856. The Nevada County Courthouse fire of July 19, 1956 destroyed all filed
property records up to that date, and only the John Day copy survives. The fire also killed
Johnson whose office caught fire. The Virginia Turnpike ran from the Anthony House on Deer
Creek (now under Lake Wildwood) to North San Juan and was fourteen miles long. In the
1860s upwards of 100 wagons a day passed over the Turnpike on their way to and from the
Nevada mines. Many of the teams consisted of two or three heavy freight wagons pulled by
up to twenty horses and mules.  The Turnpike connected to the Henness Pass Road at North
San Juan establishing a route over the Sierra and into Nevada.

Four hundred shares valued at $100. each were issued to raise $40,000. Initial shareholders
of the Turnpike:

Shareholder Shares Amount Comment

Robert Green 3 300.

A.R. Dodge 2 200. Samuel’s father-in-law?

T.W.M. Thompson 5 500. Thomas William was Jane Wood’s
nephew

James E. Cox 1 100.

J.M.C. Jasper 2 200. Wood’s son-in-law, Joseph

Mr. E.J. Jasper 2 200. Wood’s daughter, Ellen

George Fagg 2 200. Wood’s son-in-law

Mrs. A. M. Fagg 2 200. Wood’s daughter, Amanda

Mrs. Jane D. Wood 10 1000. David’s wife

N.W. Clark 125 12,500.

S. D. Wood 125 12,500. David’s son, Samuel D. Wood

David I. Wood 121 12,100.
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In 1866, David Wood lost the Turnpike and the bridge in a sheriff's sale.  With completion of
the transcontinental railroad as far as Reno on June 19, 1868, the importance of the Virginia
Turnpike was diminished, and it was used primarily for support of local commerce and mines.
In 1873, control and ownership of the Virginia Turnpike and Bridge transferred to Samuel
Wood, David Wood's son.  David Wood and his family had moved to Wheatland in 1870, and
Wood died there November 14, 1875. In January 1900, Samuel Wood renewed his license to
charge tolls, but the turnpike and bridge were taken over by the Nevada County in 1901 and
declared a free and public highway. Automobile traffic continued over the bridge until 1972.
Today, 0.37 miles of the original turnpike still exist in the Park including the stone walls con-
structed to confine travelers to the roadway.










	Virginia Turnpike narrative.pdf

